AGENDA

SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2.00 pm THURSDAY, 4 APRIL 2019
COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE

PART 1
1.

Declarations of Interest

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

3.

To select appropriate items from the Cabinet Board Agenda for prescrutiny (Cabinet Board reports enclosed for Scrutiny Members).

4.

Forward Work Programme 2018/19 (Pages 11 - 14)

5.

Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the
Chairman pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local
Government Act 1972

6.

Access to Meetings to resolve to exclude the public for the following
item(s) pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.
PART 2

7.

To select appropriate private items from the Cabinet Board Agenda
for pre-scrutiny (Cabinet Board Reports enclosed for Scrutiny
Members).
S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot

Date Not Specified

Committee Membership:
Chairperson:

Councillor L.M.Purcell

Vice
Chairperson:

Councillor S.E.Freeguard

Councillors:

H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy, J.Miller,
S.Paddison, S.H.Reynolds, D.Whitelock,
O.S.Davies, C.Williams, C.Edwards and
S.A.Knoyle

Notes:
(1) If Committee Members or non-Committee Members wish to have
relevant items put on the agenda for future meetings, then please
notify the Chief Executive/Chair eight days before the meeting.
(2) If non-Committee Members wish to attend for an item of interest, then
prior notification needs to be given (by 12.00 noon on the day before
the meeting). Non-Committee Members may speak but not vote, or
move or second any motion.
(3) For pre scrutiny arrangements, the Chair will normally recommend
forthcoming executive items for discussion/challenge. It is also open
to Committee Members to request items to be raised - though
Members are asked to be selective here in regard to important
issues.
(4) The relevant Cabinet Board Members will also be invited to be
present at the meeting for Scrutiny/ Consultation purposes.
(5) Would the Scrutiny Committee Members please bring the Cabinet
Board papers with them to the meeting.

Agenda Item 2
SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Committee Rooms A/B - Neath Civic Centre)
Members Present:

7 March, 2019

Chairman:

Councillor L.M.Purcell

Councillors:

H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy,
J.Miller, S.Paddison, D.Whitelock, O.S.Davies,
C.Edwards and S.A.Knoyle

Officers In
Attendance:

A.Jarrett, A.Thomas, J.Hodges, C.Howard,
C.Frey-Davies, A.Potts, S.Jenkins, D.Harding
J.Woodman-Ralph and N.Jones

Cabinet Invitees:

Councillors A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards

1.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
That the minutes of the previous meetings held on 10 January and 7
February 2019 be approved. Members asked in relation to 4.1 (10
January) if warden posts had been withdrawn from sheltered housing
accommodation. Officers to clarify and confirm would Members prior
to the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee.

2.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019.
The Committee noted the Forward Work Programme for 2018/19.
Members noted that the date for the presentation of the Autism
Strategy would be confirmed by Officers prior to the next meeting.

Page 3

62

3.

PRE-SCRUTINY
The Committee scrutinised the following matters:
Cabinet Board Proposals
3.1

Revised Adult Services Assisted Transport Policy
The Committee received an overview of the Revised Adult
Services Assisted Transport Policy, as detailed in the circulated
report.
Discussion took place on the need for Policies to be written in a
way that is clear and understandable by all, especially when
they were subject to consultation. Officers agreed that in future
all policies for consultation would be accompanied by an easy
read version and where appropriate to include case studies as
examples.
Confirmation was given that the proposed policy would affect
existing and new service users.
Clarification was sought by Members that service users in
receipt of mobility allowance would not be disadvantaged if they
used the allowance to fund mobility transport aids rather than
purchasing a car via the mobility scheme. Officers agreed that
the wording within the policy would be amended to allow for
further explanation of criteria as not all recipients of mobility
allowance would be prevented from receiving transport it would
be dependent on the individual’s needs.
The Committee asked what was the intention of revising the
assisted transport policy was it to realise savings as part of the
Forward Financial Plan. Officers confirmed that the aim was
not to achieve savings but to update the policy in line with the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. It was
possible that some savings would be generated but this was not
the purpose of the update.

70319

Page 4

63

Members queried whether, as part of the monitoring
arrangements, comparative data be made available to ascertain
the impact of the changes. Officers explained that as part of
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 at the
point of any changes or on an annual basis care plans would be
reviewed.
Members asked that the post consultation report be brought
back to the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny
Committee for consideration.
It was queried why the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
stated that there was no Workforce Impacts, if the Council was
withdrawing transport for some service users, would it impact
on the transport section? Officers explained that it applied to
external companies.
Further queries were raised in regard to the EIA and why only
two groups, age and disability were affected under protected
characteristics. Officers explained that this was the data
collected by the Council but that this would be revised after the
consultation period.
Member asked why there was a positive impact on protected
characteristics of these two groups by proposing they access
transport via family/friends rather than transport being provided
by the Council. This would be a negative impact due to
reducing independence. Officers explained that the provision of
transport would be based on individual need so there would be
no negative impact.
Following scrutiny, the Committee was supportive of the
proposals to be considered by Cabinet Board, subject to the
following proposals:
1. That an easy read version be developed; to include case
studies where appropriate;
2. That the wording around accessibility to transport based on
receipt of mobility allowance be clarified.

70319

Page 5

64
3. That Cabinet Members consider the Equality Impact
Assessment.
3.2

Adult Services Equitability of Service Provision Policy
Members received an overview in regard to the Adult Services
Equitability of Service Provision Policy, as detailed in the
circulated report.
The Committee highlighted the need to make policies clear and
understandable as discussed in the previous item. In addition,
policy titles needed to be clear and concise and Members
asked that consideration be given to amending the word
Equitability in the title. Also, that an easy read version be
developed and where appropriate to include case studies.
In response to the queries in regard to Direct Payments. It was
explained that the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015 allows Councils to set the level of payments by
assessing what was reasonable and allows for choice.
Additional costs above what was reasonable was paid for by
the individual.
Discussion took place on the savings that could arise as a
result of the implementation of the policy and whether the
impact of the changes would be monitored. It was confirmed
that the assessments were undertaken on a needs led basis
and any savings would be an outcome of the re-assessment of
need. The Policy was developed to ensure consistency in the
provision of services.
Similarly, to the previous report discussion took place on the
Equality Impact Assessment and how the impact was positive.
Cabinet Board was asked to re-consider the Equality Impact
Assessment.
The Committee was pleased that the person centred approach
was being taken when carry out assessments. It was important
to engage with clients and families when developing outcomes
for the individual.

70319

Page 6

65
Following scrutiny, the Committee was supportive of the proposals to
be considered by Cabinet Board subject to the following proposals:
1. That an easy read version be developed to include case studies
where appropriate;
2. That Cabinet Members consider the Equality Impact
Assessment.
3.3

Children and Young People and Adult Services – 3rd Quarter
(2018 – 19) Performance Report
Members received an overview of the Children, Young People
and Adult Services 3rd Quarter (2018 – 19) Performance as
detailed in the circulated report.
Concern was expressed at the focus of the performance
indicators and the need to ensure information contained within
the report was identifying key areas. Concern had been raised
corporately on the number of indicators that were not identifying
useful information. It was agreed that in future a suite of
indicators for adult’s services would be developed for
Committee’s information.
It was explained that children/young people were re-registered
on the child protection register due to deterioration in their
current situation. The decision to re-register was a multiagency decision and was difficult to predict but risks were
always a consideration at the multi-agency conference.
Clarification was received on the increase in the rate of people
who remained in hospital awaiting social care packages. An
explanation was given that the delay was due to the complex
care packages needed. In addition, it was identified that there
was a capacity issue within the service which had been
addressed and indications were proving positive as a result.
Members were pleased that the average age of entry into a
care home had increased to 85 years.
The Committee asked whether monitoring arrangements were
in place for people who were referred to the voluntary sector for
support. An explanation was given that monitoring

70319

Page 7

66
arrangements did not take place on an individual basis, but all
voluntary organisations which provided support on behalf of the
Council, was contracted via a Service Level Agreement, which
was reviewed on an annual basis.
The Committee made reference to the adult and children’s
services first point of access service and asked for further
details on the progress of the co-location. It was explained that
work was on-going and quality assurance audits were
undertaken as part of the monitoring of the service. Data would
be included in future performance reports but there was no
mechanism for monitoring the return rate of clients who were
given advice only.
Members observed the increase in the number of complaints
being received and asked if there was a pattern emerging. It
was acknowledged that there was an increase in the numbers
of complaints received and a report would be submitted to a
future meeting of Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet
Board containing details of all complaints.
The Committee noted that the numbers of vacancies had
increased and queried whether this had resulted in an increase
in caseload numbers within children’s services. Members were
reassured that caseloads had continued to be low and
vacancies were monitored and were manageable as there was
no agency workers employed in the service. In addition, any
savings generated contributed to the forward financial plan.
The Director was asked if there were any areas of concern that
needed to be raised with Committee. Confirmation was given
that future reports identifying areas for further scrutiny would be
submitted to Committee in due course.
Following scrutiny, the report was noted.

CHAIRPERSON

70319

Page 8

(DRAFT)
Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
Forward Work Programme 2018/19

Date of Meeting

Agenda Item

10 May 2018

Asset Based Approach- Detail and Update

31 May 2018

Forward Work Programme Workshop

Officer
Andrew Jarrett

Page 9

7 June 2018

5 July 2018

Keri Warren

Review of High Cost Placements- DEFERRED TO AUGUST

Keri Warren

Review of High Cost Placements

Keri Warren

Version 4 – amended 050918

Officer Responsible: Naidine Jones

Agenda Item 4

2 August 2018

Autism Strategy- POSTPONED

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
Forward Work Programme 2018/19

13 September 2018 ‘Open Front Door’ Presentation

11 October 2018

Welfare Rights Update

Page 10

8th November 2018 Autism Strategy

Keri Warren

Leighton Jones

Keri Warren

Adult Safeguarding and Quality Assurance

Angela Thomas

10 January 2019

Outcome Based Practice in Adult Services

Sian Walker (Angela
Thomas)

18 January 2019

Mental Health Training Session (Special)

6 December 2018

Version 4 – amended 050918

Officer Responsible: Naidine Jones

7 February 2019

7 March 2019

4 April 2019

Page 11
2 May 2019

Complaints Case Studies

Angela Thomas

Report on Rota Visits Feedback

Angela Thomas/
Gemma Hargest

Version 4 – amended 050918

Officer Responsible: Naidine Jones

To be built in:








Monitoring of Direct Payments
Valleys Action Plan
Income Generation/Budget Monitoring
Community Transport Element of Asset Based Approach
Learning Disability Service and Mental Health Service Strategic Business Plan Monitoring
Inequality of Health Provision in Valley Communities
Autism

Page 12
Version 4 – amended 050918

Officer Responsible: Naidine Jones

